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Peer Supports and Services
Request for Information
Questions and Answers


Similar questions have been combined. 
1. Why are you (The Department) doing this and what is the background, what is the purpose and how will DHHS use this information?
Traditionally, program development has often consisted of state staff working with a selected group of consumers and/or providers as well as with funding sources and other states in developing innovative practices and programs. Those programs, once conceptually developed, would often be brought to wider audiences for additional feedback and information gathering. The state would then work behind closed doors to develop a Request for Proposal (RFP) and make appropriate, subsequent, awards. A common criticism, from both the Consumer and Provider Community is that this process was perceived as exclusionary, particularly at the early stages of program development.

The Request for Information (RFI) process is more transparent and open to anyone. The Department is seeking input, feedback, suggestions, ideas, and comments from stakeholders at the earliest stages of program development. This process allows all interested parties (peers, youth, family members, individuals, organizations, providers, and associations) the opportunity to participate and potentially influence future program development.

Although other offices within The Department and State Government have utilized the RFI process, this RFI represents the first time the Office of Children and Family Services (OCFS) as well as the Office of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services (SAMHS) has issued an RFI. The Department recognizes this RFI process represents a shift from traditional program development and we are learning from the experience as well.

The Department is seeking input about innovative, emerging, and fact- based, measurable, evidenced based best practices as well as promising practices of Peer services/supports that can be demonstrated to be cost effective, accountable, and sustainable. The information gathered through this RFI process will be compiled by SAMHS and OCFS. The Department will consider these responses, along with other data and information, to inform our future initiatives which may include, but are not limited to: future development of Requests for Proposals; future groundwork in exploring the possibility of MaineCare reimbursed peer services; future development of monitoring and evaluation tools that support evidenced based best practice standards for new and existing services, and other future program and system development.

2. Is it a requirement to answer all of the questions in the RFI?

No. Any answers will be accepted.



3. Will the State accept a collective response to the RFI in one single document responding to question 7?

Yes

4. Will the state post the responses of the RFI, and if so where will they be posted?

Individual responses to the RFI will not be posted. 

5. Does the RFI response have to be on the "response content form" or will the state accept an MS word document attached to an email?

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-Are_existin]The response form does not need to be used. A word document is also acceptable.
‍
6. Are existing programs in jeopardy or is funding being cut?

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-Why_is_this]There are no known plans to cut funding for Peer Supports and Services. See question 1 for purpose of the RFI.
‍
7. Why is this happening to Peer Supports and not other services?

The RFI process is one that will very likely be used in the future by both OCFS and SAMHS as a common pre-cursor to future RFPs and program development. The Department has made commitments to federal funding sources regarding Peer Services and Supports which is why these services are the first to be open to the RFI process.

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-The_first_q]‍8. The first questions members are asking reflect a common perception that people who use the mental health and substance abuse services the Department provides or contracts for are not involved or represented in the design, development, planning, implementation or evaluation of those services.
The purpose of the Request for Information process is to allow all individuals, organizations, and associations an opportunity to be involved in the design, development, planning, implementation, and evaluation of Peer Services and Supports as early as possible. This is the first RFI that our office has produced, and it represents a process that is open and transparent. It is one that provides opportunity for us to hear from a multitude of voices that provide us with: lived experiences, opinions, data, information, and facts.

9. Who conceived of, designed and wrote the RFI?

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-2._Were_any]Members of OCFS and SAMHS teams, which includes people who receive or have received mental health and/or peer support services, wrote the RFI, based on an existing template and existing RFI’s already published by the Department. The RFI process is a product of the State of Maine’s Division of Purchases. This RFI is used in part to assist program (the Office of Children and Family Services and the Office of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services) in developing future RFP’s, system design, and evaluation tools--see 'What is the Purpose' above.


‍10. Were any representatives of either peer advocacy or peer support organizations involved in the process?
No. Given this process is a first step in the Request for Proposal (RFP) development, it would be inappropriate, and a basis of a legitimate appeal, to involve a potential future bidder.

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-3._What_fac]‍11. What factors were used to determine the time-frames and methods for consumer/stakeholder input and response? Why are the time-frames so short and condensed?
The time frame for response, from time of RFI announcement to time of closing the RFI, is 7 weeks (49 days). Responses can be submitted 24 hours a day during this time. Responses can be accepted through our website, through the mail, email, and through three Regional Forums. You have until August 30th to respond to the RFI (a total of 7 weeks) and all your ideas are most welcome.

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-4._Were_any]‍12. Were any external peer organizations who are skilled, experienced and connected to the consumer community consulted or involved in the process of gathering meaningful, informed responses from a broad base of people using mental health and/or substance abuse services?
[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-1._Is_the_R]The purpose of the RFI is to solicit a multitude of responses, including those from external peer organizations who are skilled, experienced and connected to the consumer community. We strongly encourage and hope that such organizations and individuals will respond to the RFI in whole or in part.

‍13. Is the RFI asking for specific proposals for peer support program models that currently exist in state or out of state, concepts, ideas or general thoughts and feedback about peer support services? Or both?

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-2._Where_di]All of the above. The RFI is seeking input about both specific peer support program models/concepts, ideas and general thoughts as well as feedback about peer supports/services. This is not a request for the submission of full proposals to a bidding process however.

‍14. Where did the terminology and abbreviations defining and describing Intentional Peer Support, Peer Support, and Peer come from, or upon what information source are they based?

Terminology and abbreviations are commonly utilized by the Department and have been developed in the past with peer input. There is a section in the RFI, ‘Abbreviation and Terminology’ which describes and defines these commonly used acronyms and terms.

15. Specific to the Peer Support terminology description, what is meant by a “transparent relationship” and “negotiating power”?

Transparent relationship: means one where both parties have an open, clear, and authentic approach to the relationship.
Negotiating power: means conveying and discussing commonality and differences in a peer support relationship in which both people learn and grow while continuously negotiating the terms of the relationship (and have responsibility for making it work).

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-3._Why_is_R]‍16. Why is Recovery and Resiliency listed as a separate type and/or setting for peer support? What is Recovery peer support vs any of the other listed areas or settings in which peer support is or could be offered and utilized? Why would Recovery be listed as a program area or service?
[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-4._On_the_R]‘Recovery’ and 'Resiliency' are terms of art commonly used in the Behavioral Health field and by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA). 'Recovery' is typically used in Adult circles while 'Resiliency' is typically used in Youth circles.
‍17. On the Response Content Form, why are Consumer/Peer or Consumer/Peer Group offered as one category with one box to check? What is the Department’s understanding of the difference between the two?
The Department is seeking to understand if a response is coming from an individual or from a person who is responding on behalf of an organization or group and if the response was generated by a group of peers /consumers.

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-5._What_is_]‍18. What is the purpose behind the question b. under #6 Inter-Organizational Supports? What is the thinking behind listing individuals affected by trauma as separate specific population?
The thinking is designed to prompt readers/responders to this RFI of a larger community context. Specific groups are highlighted as examples (not a laundry list) of commonly under-served groups. The federal government often looks at how services are being delivered to under-served groups. Trauma is highlighted to understand how trauma-informed practice is utilized in recommended peer supports/services.

[bookmark: Questions_and_Answers-Themes-6._What_eff]‍19. What efforts were made to ensure that the RFI and in particular, the Response Content Form were in accessible, clear, easily understood language and instructions? What efforts were made to educate people who receive mental health and/or substance abuse services as to the RFI process, method of responses, utilization of responses, and access to the RFI, other than electronically?
The RFI is not as formal as a Request for Proposal, however it is an instrument and provides a context for feedback. As stated in the RFI, ‘Not all questions are required to be answered in order for you to submit information to be shared with the Department’. In fact, we have an open-ended question #7, which provides opportunity for ‘Other Information you would like to convey…’

The RFI was advertised in three of Maine’s large media market news papers (Portland, Augusta, Bangor); it has been sent electronically to multiple distribution lists; and is available to anyone via mail, pick-up, email, or online. For a hard copy, please contact Jane Malinowski, DHHS-OSAMHS, 41 Anthony Ave, Augusta, ME 04333 (207) 287-2595, //jane.malinowski@maine.gov//   Online access can be found at: http://www.maine.gov/dhhs/samhs/peersupport/index.shtml
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